HMS COMMITTEE

Sawgrass Marriott Ponte Vedra Beach, FL

June 12, 2017

SUMMARY MINUTES

Committee Members

Anna Beckwith, Chair

Ben Hartig

Mark Brown

Charlie Phillips

Council Members

Dr. Michelle Duval

Zack Bowen

Chris Conklin

Tim Griner

Dr. Roy Crabtree

Doug Haymans

Dr. Wilson Laney

Mel Bell

Chester Brewer

Dr. Roy Crabtree

Doug Haymans

Council Staff

Gregg WaughJohn CarmichaelDr. Brian CheuvrontMyra BrouwerKimberly ColeDr. Chip CollierMike CollinsDr. Mike ErrigoJohn HadleyKim IversonDr. Kari MacLauchlinRoger PuglieseCameron RhodesAmber Von Harten

Observers/Participants

Dr. Jack McGovern

Monica Smit-Brunello

Brika Burgess

Dale Diaz

Rick DeVictor

Dr. Marcel Reichert

Dewey Hemilright

Walter Hoppe

Other Observers/Participants attached

The HMS Committee of the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council convened at the Sawgrass Marriott, Ponte Vedra Beach, Florida, Monday afternoon, June 12, 2017, and was called to order by Chairman Anna Beckwith.

MS. BECKWITH: The membership of this committee includes Mark Brown, Ben Hartig, and Charlie Phillips, and so if you guys can make sure that you are aware of your jobs. First of all, I would like to know if there is any amendments to the agenda. Seeing none, that agenda is approved. Are there any revisions necessary to the December 2016 minutes? Seeing none, those minutes are approved. I am going to pass the mic over to John to introduce our guests and then to discuss our first agenda item.

MR. HADLEY: Thank you. Before we get started here, I want to introduce two gentlemen at the table that just came up. One is Joe Shiver, and he is the Commercial Fishing Vessel Examiner located in Jacksonville, Florida, for the U.S. Coast Guard. Also, we have Walter Hoppe, who is the Commercial Fishing Vessel Program Coordinator for the U.S. Coast Guard 7th District. I just wanted to introduce them. They've been very helpful, and we'll get into some of the details in the next subject, but they were very helpful in comparing the HMS general category permit database with the U.S. Coast Guard's database, and so certainly a big thank-you to them, and they're here as a resource, if you have any Coast Guard or commercial fishing vessel safety-related questions.

With that, I will hop into the presentation. I put together a few brief slides just going over the white paper that was written regarding HMS general category permitted vessels meeting commercial fishing vessel safety exam requirements. The paper is Attachment 1a in your briefing book, and the slides are Attachment 1b.

As a little bit of background, this originated from a request from the Southeastern Fisheries Association to obtain information on the number of vessels possessing a commercial fishing HMS general category permit, but not certified as compliant by the U.S. Coast Guard for the safety requirements of a commercial fishing vessel. In general, there was concern over inequity occurring for vessels that are in compliance. This was discussed at the December 2016 meeting, and the council directed staff to provide further information on the issue. The issue has also recently been discussed by the Mid-Atlantic Council and the HMS Advisory Panel.

Just a little bit more background, a general overview. There are four general category permits that allow sale of highly migratory species. One is the Atlantic tunas, and there are three sub-categories of this permit, the general, the harpoon, and the purse seine. There is the swordfish general commercial permit, a combination swordfish/tunas, and the Atlantic HMS charter/headboat permit. This permit, we'll get into a little bit more detail on it, but it's a dual-purpose permit that authorizes both recreational, for-hire, and commercial fishing for HMS species. All four of these permits are open access, with the exception of the purse seine Atlantic tunas permit.

To get into a little bit more detail on the vessel safety exam requirement, effective October 15, 2015, federal law requires all commercial fishing vessels operating outside of three miles to obtain a U.S. Coast Guard commercial fishing vessel dockside safety exam at least once every five years. To meet the mandatory five-year dockside exam requirement, a commercial fishing vessel must have successfully completed an exam on or after January 1, 2013.

The safety requirements vary by vessel size, region fished, and distance from shore where fishing takes place, and, in addition to a specific vessel designation as a commercial fishing vessel, a vessel that is commercial fishing is defined as a vessel that commercially engages in the catching, taking, or harvesting of fish, which either in whole or in part is intended to enter commerce through sale, barter, or trade.

Looking into the analysis that was done, Mr. Hoppe performed a comparison of HMS permitted vessel holders in the 7th District, and so this was from South Carolina to Florida, and then we used also a previous analysis completed by the U.S. Coast Guard 5th District to incorporate North Carolina vessels, and this analysis was provided in your briefing book under Attachment 1c.

In general, we compared the HMS commercial general category permitted vessels with a home port in the South Atlantic region with the U.S. Coast Guard Marine Information Safety and Law Enforcement Database, and so this database stores information on marine accidents, pollution incidents, search and rescue cases, law enforcement activities, and vessel inspections or examinations.

Vessel types included in the summary tables provided in the white paper, the categories included were commercial fishing vessels, uninspected passenger vessels, recreational vessels, inspected vessels, and other. At times, vessels holding an HMS general category permit were not listed in the U.S. Coast Guard database, and this likely occurred due to an error in how the vessel ID was entered or that the vessel had never interacted with the U.S. Coast Guard.

There were multiple tables in the white paper, but this was kind of the -- This breaks down the findings by the permit type, the HMS permit type, but this was the kind of summary table, at the very end, that takes all of the HMS general category permitted vessels and breaks them down by vessel type, and so you can see that on the far left there, and then whether or not they had received a commercial fishing vessel safety exam, and you can see, at the very top here, those are the commercial fishing vessels. Those are the ones that were registered as commercial fishing vessels. A large portion of those had not received it, and then, down the line, you can see, overall, there were some that had satisfied the exam requirement, but several that had not as well.

Down here towards the end, the recreational vessels, almost none of them had received that, and then I will also mention that the inspected vessels -- The reason that this was not required is that, to become a U.S. Coast Guard inspected vessel, these safety requirements are above and beyond that of a commercial fishing vessel. They exceed those requirements, and that's why it would not be required.

A bit of discussion on this. Overall, it was clear that many HMS general category permitted vessels were not in the database as receiving a commercial fishing vessel safety exam at the time the analysis was performed. This suggests that there may be a relatively high level of non-compliance with the safety exam requirement. There was a big of a gray area though in determining the exact level of non-compliance, and one of the large areas, still kind of the confounding factor, was the dual purpose of the HMS charter/headboat permit that makes determining non-compliance difficult, in some cases.

Essentially, if a for-hire vessel simply wants to take passengers out and they have no intention of -- They may not ever sell any HMS species, but this still have this permit, which does allow

commercial sale, and so there is a little bit of a gray area there, and about 60 percent of the HMS general category permit holders in the South Atlantic held this charter/headboat permit, and so that's a pretty good portion of the overall population there.

This has come to the attention of the Mid-Atlantic Council as well, and some outside groups have weighed in on this, and so both the Mid-Atlantic Council and the National Association of Charter Boat Operators have recently suggested splitting the sale and no-sale components of the HMS charter/headboat permit into two separate permits to address this gray area on the commercial fishing vessel safety requirements.

The Mid-Atlantic recommendation had a party/charter no-sale permit, and so this would purely be recreational use. Then, also, a party/charter sale permit, and so this would be a mixed recreational and commercial use permit, and those that had this permit would be required to have the commercial fishing vessel safety exam. Additionally, they suggested that the requirement of either an HMS logbook or VTR reporting for HMS charter/headboat and general category permit holders.

The National Association of Charter Boat Operators suggested a similar split of the charter/headboat permit into a recreational and commercial permit, the recreational being purely recreational and the commercial permit being mixed commercial and recreational use. Again, thereby clarifying the commercial fishing vessel safety requirements and also clarifying it just for enforcement purposes. I think will mention that both of these recommendations were included in your briefing book under I believe it was 1d and 1e.

Some general actions that have been taken to improve compliance, the U.S. Coast and NOAA Fisheries recently provided a statement and a news release reminding HMS commercial permit holders of the exam requirements. The U.S. Coast Guard has notified commercial fishing vessel safety examiners of the findings of non-compliance, and they will continue to follow up in the field with HMS-permitted vessels fishing commercially. It is also believed that compliance will improve, through targeted outreach and education of the exam requirement coupled with on-thewater enforcement. With that, I will be happy to answer any questions.

MS. BECKWITH: Are there any questions on the presentation? Wow. Good job.

MR. HARTIG: Under your discussion slide, it says 63 percent of HMS general category permit holders in the South Atlantic held a charter/headboat permit, and they would not be required to get the commercial fishing vessel inspection, because their inspection requirements are more stringent than the commercial fishing stuff?

MR. HADLEY: Not for the -- That's for the inspected vessels. Those would be the ones that wouldn't be -- I will look for confirmation from the Coast Guard representatives.

MR. HOPPE: The headboats are typically either a UPV, uninspected passenger vessel, which takes people out to fish, or a T-boat, a vessel inspected under Sub-Chapter T. The commercial fishing vessel safety regulations are for uninspected vessels, and, in Part 28 of the regulations, it specifically exempts vessels that are inspected under another part of Chapter 46, and so a vessel that is inspected holds a Certificate of Inspection from the Coast Guard. That level, for their safety equipment, exceeds the requirements for a commercial fishing vessel that is uninspected, and so they wouldn't have to undergo another exam.

MR. BROWN: I have got a T-boat, and Hooper does mine, and he said to said hello to you, too. Whenever I do my inspections and it's time for that renewal for the commercial side, since I've got those permits, I just do it at the same time, and there's only just a slight difference, with the flares and stuff, but it usually is pretty smooth, just doing them both at the same time.

DR. DUVAL: Thanks for the presentation, John. Just in reading the white paper, one of the things that sort of stood out to me, and I'm assuming that this is the reason that both the Mid-Atlantic Council and NACO recommended splitting this into two is that the exception that can occur for an uninspected passenger vessel that's taking folks out sportfishing is, when the party returns to the dock, and if the passengers do not want to keep their catch, they can sell their catch without having to have the exam or fisheries endorsement, provided that the vessel operator or crew has the correct commercial permit and sale of the species is allowed.

This is allowable, because the intent of the business was taking passengers fishing, and they were not intending to harvest fish to sell and the sale of the fish is incidental to their businesses, and so that kind of seems to be the crux of the whole thing, is that your intent may be to go out taking passengers fishing, but, if you're left with fish on your boat afterwards, that you're then allowed to sell those fish, even though you don't have that commercial fishing vessel inspection.

MS. BECKWITH: That's correct, and I don't know if Dewey wanted to touch upon the Mid-Atlantic's discussion.

MR. HEMILRIGHT: Thank you, Anna. I think it's a more than that. Of course, how this kind of started out is that, at the Mid, at our HMS Committee, we had some discussion on how to level the playing field, and leveling of the playing field is you have HMS, who is issuing permits that allow you to sell, and, if you sell the fish, you're considered commercial fishing, and so you have to have safety examinations, and some of this looking at it is, if you're in the Mid-Atlantic, and you have a general category permit, and you also have a charter permit that allows you to charter fish and general category bluefin fishing, if you have a party, you can go out fishing, and, the first fish of your day, of your choosing, decides if you are charter fishing or decides if you're general category fishing.

There is two ways from my looking at it. It's quite obvious here that there's a number of vessels that don't meet the requirements that are out there that have permits that are issued by HMS that allows you to engage in commercial commerce, and, under that, you are supposed to have a Coast Guard inspection.

Furthermore, with the Coast Guard inspection of the different vessels and size and where you operate, it could be costly. It could be \$5,000 for your life raft and your EPIRB and your survival suits and drill instructor and different things. Every year, it's around a thousand dollars, and so, basically, for the Mid-Atlantic, it was basically leveling the playing field.

To use a little instance of myself as a commercial fisherman, from my use of this ocean and what I have to account, I have to fill out all these logbook reports, and, if I don't fill out my logbooks and reports, I don't get my permit renewed. When we look at this here, it is clearly -- Clearly there is problems here, and not just a small bit, but one of the clearer things is, if you have HMS issuing permits that allow you to enter into commerce or sell -- Some of our recommendations to them

would be to split the permits. Either you are or you're not, and, if you are, there is a litany of stuff that you need to follow to be that, but that's the two major things that I see.

Also, it's the issuing of the permits. HMS shouldn't be issuing permits to allow you to sell if you don't have to meet the requirements, and we brought this up at the HMS AP meeting, and it was probably -- They had a little exercise where you go up there and put dots on the board, and this, by far, I believe, got the most dots, about splitting the permits.

Nobody wants to know that, all of a sudden, you've got to spend \$5,000 to go get all this commercial safety equipment, but that's the price you pay if that's what you want to be, and so the best thing would be to probably split the two permits and get everybody up to compliance, just like that commercial man does, and, not only that, it would probably help the councils to decide, well, who is the commercial and who is this one, and so all you've got to do is look.

However that could be cleaned up, and, with HMS, it's probably going to take a little bit of time, because it takes them a little bit longer than usual to do things, but that's kind of the crux of it. It's pretty plain and simple, and the Coast Guard, both in the 5th District and also down here, have done extensive work on going and looking at their database, by producing these numbers and showing just what they have, and so the next steps would be up to the councils, and maybe this council could send a letter to HMS requesting and complementing the same thing that the Mid-Atlantic has asked for and the same thing that the National Charter Boat Association -- Also complementing them, and so that's kind of the twofold thing, but it is leveling the playing field, because, right now, it's a big disparity about what's going on, and also the reporting part of it.

MR. BELL: Just putting my Law Enforcement Committee hat on here, I can tell, you from an enforceability standpoint, what Dewey was describing, the sort of which are you, that's one of the issues with this whole thing of sale off of what would otherwise be recreational boats or recreational sale. It just creates a confusing environment for law enforcement to work in, whether it's Coast Guard or NOAA OLE or our guys operating in JEAs.

Anything we can do to clean it up and make it much more understandable of who they're dealing with on the water and what the purpose of that trip is, and then, like Dewey said, there is the aspect of just an even playing field. If you're a commercial guy, and that's what you have to do to sell your catch, it doesn't seem very fair that somebody that doesn't necessarily operate that way all the time could come in and basically enter your market or enter your world and not have those same requirements.

From an enforceability standpoint, the clearer we can make things, and I know this is HMS we're talking about, but this has certainly come up in other fisheries, particularly, most recently, related to cobia, and I know it's created some confusion in our area in Charleston, the Charleston sector, and then dealing with District 7 about these guys that are now targeting cobia out there on just private boats, but they're commercially-licensed, and so what are they?

They're commercial boats, but they're normally just a recreational boat, but they're -- I've worked with Matt a good bit in trying to figure out who is who, but there's a great bunch of them, probably, that aren't worrying about this at all, and so, again, from an enforceability standpoint, if we can clear some of this up, it really makes life easier for them on the water.

MR. CONKLIN: It seems like we could write a recommendation letter or something to HMS to make it where you have to have proof of the inspection or have an updated list, so they could cross-reference on a real-time basis before they issue the permit. That would be the first step in the right direction, and then, the sale part of it, I would leave that up to somebody else, but proving that you passed the inspection and have taken the steps to become compliant on the safety side of it is a pretty good idea.

MR. HAYMANS: I am not on the rather small committee, but I guess -- Maybe, Dewey, this is for you, and though I may agree with the splitting, if I look at a commercial permit for a sportfishing boat carrying charter/for-hire, it has shades of the argument we hear out of the Gulf over vessels taking charter/for-hire passengers and then selling fish and whatnot back to them, and was there any discussion amongst the Mid-Atlantic Council on sort of that aspect of it sounds like a sea lords issue?

MR. HEMILRIGHT: We really didn't focus on the Gulf aspect. We focused in on HMS, and here is a better discussion, or a little scenario. Under the general category permit bluefin tuna fishing, or charter fishing, you have two permits. You can carry a charter out fishing that day and leave the dock, and your first fish is a giant bluefin. You can catch that fish and advertise him that we'll catch you that fish, and then we'll give you up to 20 percent of the money from the sale of that fish, which is legal, which was astounding to me, once I read the regulations.

I don't know -- I am not trying to get in the weeds on little things and stuff like that, but maybe if we start with something that is -- I was going to say commonsense, but we can't do that, but something that's simple. Which one are you? Clearly, if you are going to be no sale, you're not worried about having to go spend \$5,000 for all of this safety equipment, but, if you think you're going to sell, that covers you, and so splitting the two permits would be number one, and then maybe second past that is -- When you go to renew your permits -- Of you don't have a permit, that is one thing, if you're out there fishing, and that's rogue fishing.

HMS is the one that issues that permit, and they have the option of not issuing that permit if you don't have a safety decal, which you're trying to get a thing to sell, and so you have an avenue of an entity that's issuing permits that maybe need to be better partners before they issue that permit, because one of the criteria of issuing the sale permit is you have to have a safety vessel inspection.

Now, do I think tomorrow that 8,000 or 10,000 are going to go out and get their inspection? No, but there is some way we have got to start to leveling this playing field, and it's not to say -- These are the big loopholes, and let's fix that first. The little loopholes, they will probably still go on, and you can worry about that later, if that becomes a problem, but, right now -- For instance, in the general category bluefin fishery, there was numerous vessels this year in North Carolina that didn't have no equipment, their safety equipment, and so they're out there selling their fish, and kind of the way that some of the constituents that I represent looked at it is, well, he's out there catching fish and he's illegal. If he wouldn't have been out there, I could have caught more fish, because you don't have the safety equipment.

It goes back to who is issuing the permits, and the only way that you get to go fishing is to have permits, and so, if HMS could tighten up their situation about issuing permits, to have two of them, one of them no-sale and the second one be sell, and, if you want to sell, provide me your Coast Guard fishing vessel and safety decal number and nothing else. We're not going to look at -- Just

supply the number. That way, it gives the Coast Guard an opportunity to look in the database and say, wait a second, here is Number 1234, and there is no safety decal for 1234, and how did they come up with that, and so it's been eye-opening, both for the Mid-Atlantic Council, and I also believe the Coast Guard, and I also believe for HMS.

This is me tending to me a little passive in the situation, but I think that's the way to handle it, or to look at it, because they're the ones issuing the permit, and the one that is issuing the permits is the one that has control over whether you go fishing or not, and I don't think it's too much of a demand to be put in there of just a little simple thing. If you're selling these fish or applying for this permit, please provide me your safety decal number.

MS. BECKWITH: Just a little history. This particular permit was created in 1997, and I believe it became effective in 1998, and so things have changed since then, but HMS's perspective, we gathered, was that they had felt that the permit had worked the way it was and that those utilizing the permit were complying on the regulations, but, because there is this new issue with the inspections, now it's become apparent that vessels like my personal vessel, we're not getting the inspections, because we don't sell.

There is that loophole that Michelle mentioned about the intent to sell, and so, if I was properly permitted commercially in the State of North Carolina, even if I didn't have the inspection, because my intent was not to sell when I left the dock, I could conceivably sell, and so there is that loophole, and we are trying to -- I think the intent is to find a way of cleaning that up.

During the HMS Advisory Panel meeting that we had recently, the discussion did center around a clean fix would be separating the permits out. I think, for us, our next step would be deciding if this council would be interested in supporting that way forward, for HMS to split these permits out to one that would allow for-hire sales and one that would not, and then the Mid-Atlantic also had some discussion about reporting in their recommendations, that, as move forward with our for-hire reporting amendment, we may not need to support, and so we may want to decide how much we would like to put in a letter to HMS. I guess my first question would be is this council interested in supporting the idea of separating out these permits to a strictly recreational charter and then one that might allow sale?

MR. PHILLIPS: Madam Chair, I am on your skinny committee, and it makes sense to decide who is in the game and who is not. As far as the sticker, I don't know that I would request the sticker before you get the permit. If you get the permit, you can't sell the fish until you get the sticker, and let the Coast Guard deal with that and just keep it as simple and as high and clean as we could. We have been dealing with recreational catch interfering or competing with commercial interests for a long, long time, and this looks like a fairly reasonable and simple fix.

MR. BOWEN: I am not on your itty-bitty committee either, but, Charlie, I like your phrase of deciding who is in the game and who is not. That is probably going to come up later this week, and I like that thought. I am also of the opinion that we need to have some level of consistency in other species.

We, as a council, have decided for no sale of species from the for-hire-caught vessels or trips, and so I'm of the opinion that we don't need to confuse that. Yes, we may need to split these permits up, but going down that road of selling for-hire caught fish is not what I want to see, and I am

totally against that, but I do like the idea of figuring out who the players are and who is in the game and identifying the effort. Boy, I like that.

MR. HEMILRIGHT: Back to Charlie's point about -- I don't feel like it's the Coast Guard's responsibility to decide about the permit, if you have had your Coast Guard inspection, as far as selling the fish. I mean, you shouldn't be getting a charter/for-hire to sell permit if you don't have the proper Coast Guard safety inspection, and so, therefore, what Charlie is saying is don't worry about that.

Let the Coast Guard figure that out. Well, the Coast Guard is not there stopping every vessel to see if they met the requirement. It should be the issuing of that permit, to help out, in partnership with the Coast Guard, to see if they have that. We're issuing you a permit, but yet the Coast Guard can't stop 1,500 vessels, or 1,000 vessels, at the same time, to see if they've got the fish onboard and what their intent is.

If you have that permit, if you're going to have that permit, there needs to be something there, if it's a second permit that says, hey, you know what, I've got my safety inspection, and here is my number, and so that's -- You're assigned to get that permit, and, as part of getting that permit, you have to have your Coast Guard safety vessel inspection, and so it shouldn't be left off for your permit renewal application every year, because, not only that, but you also have -- It might come up in the future, that, if you take observers, you've got to have a commercial vessel safety inspection to take them observers.

What happens is, on a commercial fishing vessel, if your safety decal is out of compliance or out of date, you don't go fishing, and so this is stuff that's coming back, as we go forward in the future, of leveling the playing field of the haves and have-nots, or the wants and have-nots. Therefore, that should be included in permit renewal.

Maybe you're given a grace period of a year, to say, hey, because it seems like, a lot of times, when we put these things in place, there is a grace period of a year or eighteen months, especially for the recreational. I think it's called like helping them with compliance, instead of that, and so, I mean, I think that is crucial, of having that in there, of issuing that permit, that you have to have that commercial safety decal, or a number where you've been inspected, because that's part of having that permit.

MR. PHILLIPS: I think you misunderstood or misinterpreted my thought process. My thought process is you can apply for your permit and sell the fish, and, at the same time, you may be working on getting that \$5,000 together so that you can put that life raft onboard. You're working toward that. Not everybody has that in their pocket, but you can't sell that fish until get it, or you've got these permits and we split them up, and maybe your vessel safety expires, and so you can't sell fish again until you get it renewed.

I am not saying that they shouldn't have it, but I just don't want to tie that to the permit, and you can, but I just don't want to tie it to the permit, and I would rather just -- If it expires, like you said, you can't go snapper fishing, or you can't go land that fish and sell it, and it's more semantics than just not having to have it.

MS. BECKWITH: The cost of the inspection is really based on the size of the boat. There is a website that folks can visit, and you can put in all of your information and the requirements for individual vessels to pass that inspection is pretty broad. A twenty-four-foot boat fishing primarily nearshore on day trips, the requirements are not as stringent, of course, and so I hear that sort of \$5,000 price point, and that's not necessarily the case, and maybe you guys can help us clarify that.

MR. HOPPE: Just to clarify, an uninspected vessel that gets a commercial fishing vessel safety exam, the exam itself is no cost. The Coast Guard comes out and does that for you for free. What they're associating the cost with is having the required equipment, but that equipment is required by law, in the regulations, whether you have the exam or not, when the exams were voluntary or if you're within three miles. When you say the Coast Guard or someone is costing you money to get an exam, there is no cost for the exam. The cost is just to be in compliance with the law, but you need to be in compliance, whether you have the decal or not.

When you say inspection, an inspected vessel does pay, on annual basis, every time they renew their COI. There is a user fee. Actually, I think you pay it once for the five years, but there is a fee associated with the Coast Guard coming out and doing the inspection for them, and so that's cutting hairs, but I just wanted to clarify that.

MR. BELL: I was just kind of following up on what Dewey, I think, was trying to set up. In the permit issuance system, where, if you're on a vessel, if it's a vessel that needs this inspection, that that's one of the check-boxes that they would look at before they issued you that permit, and so, if you don't do that, and there are vessels out there that are issued the permit, and they're out there fishing, but they don't have the inspection and they should, then they're subject to -- I am looking at the summary settlement schedule for NMFS, and so this could be Coast Guard or NMFS or our guys doing JEA, and failure to show proof of passing U.S. Coast Guard commercial fishing vessel safety examination, or the alternate NMFS safety equipment exam, that's a \$500 ticket or a \$1,000 ticket.

You're kind of setting them up, maybe, to get popped if you don't kind of make them -- If you don't check that box. That's what Dewey was saying, is you start out, and, before they hand you the permit, they check the box and then you're good. Otherwise, you could find yourself spending a little money dealing with that, and so it's kind of setting them up. It's a little bit of a liability there, and they say, well, NMFS gave me the permit, and so I'm good to go. Well, if you're not, and you get caught without it, you could get in trouble.

MR. BROWN: We keep talking about the life raft and the cost of the life raft, but there's also the cost of the survival suits too, and there's this break at 32 degrees North, between the cold water, supposedly, the cold water and the colder water, and, when you get north of there, you do have to invest in that too, and that's pretty costly, depending on how many people you've got onboard. Then, commercial-wise, you've got to have a better set of flares and everything. There is some different costs associated with that type of permit.

MS. BECKWITH: Right. I think I am hearing some agreement that we would be in support of HMS splitting these permits out to accommodate these concerns. Is there some consensus for that? Okay. The second piece would be -- We don't have to put in any comments or recommendations for any reporting requirements, but certainly the other two letters that we have in the briefing book

have some suggestions for that. Specifically, the Mid-Atlantic recommended HMS to require logbook or vessel trip reports for HMS charter/headboats and general category permits, so there was a more uniform two-ticket system for tracking HMS sales. Again, we don't have to extend our comments to reporting, but, if there is any desire to do that, then this would be the time to make that suggestion.

MR. GRINER: Maybe I am a little confused on this, but does -- In order for one of these charter/headboat guys, or for-hire guys, to sell a tuna, do they not have to have a state-issued commercial fishing license? If they don't, then how would a dealer ever purchase it in the first place?

MS. BECKWITH: Those are state-by-state requirements. Of course, for North Carolina, we require them to have that, but I believe that different states have different requirements. HMS does require reporting of many of these species, and not in the two-ticket form that the Mid-Atlantic is suggesting, but there is a reporting requirement that HMS has in place for commercial sale, and so this isn't quite our house, and so I'm sort of sensitive to what we present to them, but I am offering the opportunity.

MR. GRINER: I just wanted to understand that, just because you have an open-access HMS permit on a for-hire vessel, it does not give you the right to go sell that fish.

MS. BECKWITH: Not in North Carolina, correct. Okay. Again, am I seeing any desire for us to specifically put in comments for reporting, or would we like to base our comments solely on the splitting of permits?

MR. PHILLIPS: Madam Chair, I think I would just keep it relatively simple and split the permits. I think that will give them plenty of direction, and they're going to get plenty of comment on the other stuff as it is.

MS. BECKWITH: Yes, and they did get plenty of comments at the last HMS AP, and they're definitely talking through different reporting aspects.

MR. HARTIG: I agree with Charlie.

MS. BECKWITH: Okay. Sounds good. May I get a motion requesting staff to prepare a comment letter to HMS supporting the splitting of these permits?

MR. HARTIG: I will make that motion, Madam Chairman.

MS. BECKWITH: I will assume that Charlie is willing to second that motion. The motion reads: Direct staff to write a letter to HMS stating comments in support of splitting HMS charter/headboat permits into recreational only and a permit that allows sale. That was made by Ben and seconded by Charlie. Is there any opposition to this motion? Seeing none, that motion passes.

Is there any other questions or thoughts on this particular issue? Okay. I am going to give John a second to catch up, and the next topic is a discussion on shark feeding in the South Atlantic, and I believe that John is going to give us a bit of background on that.

MR. HADLEY: Thank you. I will briefly introduce the subject and turn it over to the committee, but this topic arose from a letter from the Southeastern Fisheries Association stating concerns regarding dive operations occurring in the South Atlantic and feeding sharks during these dive tours, and they occur in federal waters. There was concern that this may cause serious injury to commercial divers, other sport divers, and other people that are in the water in general. I will mention that this letter was Attachment 2a in your briefing book.

As a little bit of background, there was some legislation, federal legislation, that would have banned shark feeding in federal waters, Draft Bill S. 3099, and this legislation did not move forward. This draft legislation was included as Attachment 2b, and so, as of now, there is no active federal legislation to ban shark feeding in federal waters, and that is my very brief overview. With that, I will turn it back over.

MS. BECKWITH: Thanks. Jessica, could you offer some thoughts on this issue, since it seems to be happening primarily in Florida waters?

MS. MCCAWLEY: Florida has already prohibited shark feeding, and, by shark feeding, we don't mean chumming. We mean the introduction of food by hand by a diver that is actually introducing it to the shark.

It's actually something that we've been hoping would be amended in Magnuson, to not allow shark feeding in federal waters off of Florida. There are already a number of other areas where the Magnuson Act calls out specific places, like Hawaii, where they don't allow shark feeding, and so this is something that we've been following.

As noted in the letter from Bob Jones, as well as in the bill from the last Congress, it was attached to an item relative to Biscayne National Park. Ultimately, this bill died, in the last congressional session, and I'm not sure if the shark feeding prohibition would be coming back this year or not. I am not necessarily certain that there is something for the committee to do at this time, since there is no bill on the table, but maybe there will be, but there isn't right now. If you have more questions about it, I can certainly try to provide some answers about the problems or the concerns or whatever it is.

MS. BECKWITH: Okay. Is there any questions on this topic? I am not sure where we as a committee or council can impact this topic.

DR. DUVAL: I think the question that was posed by Bob Jones in his letter was can the South Atlantic Council prohibit shark feeding in federal waters, and I think the clear answer to that is no. I mean, one, we don't manage those species, and so it would really be incumbent upon the agency to do that, or, as Jessica mentioned, if there was some modification of Magnuson to prohibit shark feeding.

That's really, I think, the answer to the question, and I think there was another question with regard to data showing how many oceanic sharks are killed by sport divers in the South Atlantic, and I don't know if that type of data exists. Perhaps the State of Florida has information on that, but I don't know, personally.

HMS Committee June 12, 2017 Ponte Vedra Beach, FL

MS. MCCAWLEY: I am not sure about that data either, but I had tried to explain to Bob Jones in the past, and so our legal office worked with NOAA legal, and it was determined that this is something that has to be modified in Magnuson. That's what the folks from HMS told us as well, and I think that Bob believed that there was a way that the South Atlantic could take some sort of action relative to that, although that's not been what our attorneys or NOAA attorneys have indicated.

MS. BECKWITH: Great. Thank you for that clarification.

MR. BREWER: Something that we -- I hesitate to bring this up, but I will, and it's something that I have witnessed, but there is a growing trend, certainly in south Florida, that people are cobia fishing, and, in particular, spearfishing for cobia, who are taking dead fish, and they hang it over the side of the boat, filleted essentially, halfway filleted, in order to attract mostly bull sharks. They then get in the water and shoot cobia right next to that. Now, that may just be Darwin at work, but, to me, that's a really dangerous and stupid thing to do.

MR. BELL: I would just say, having been a professional diver for over forty years, in one capacity or another, some of this stuff will just take care of itself, and I don't think we need to worry about our time, and it's outside of kind of our purview anyway, but it will take care of itself, and that's just nuts, some of that stuff. Think about it. You don't go hand-feed black bears, and you don't hand-feed alligators and other things, and so it will resolve.

MS. BECKWITH: Well said. Okay. Is there any other business that anyone would like to discuss? Seeing none, I adjourn this committee. Thank you.

(Whereupon, the meeting adjourned on June 12, 2017.)

Certified By:	Date:

Transcribed By: Amanda Thomas July 21, 2017

2017 COMMITTEES

ADVISORY PANEL SELECTION

Chester Brewer, Chair Mark Brown, Vice-Chair Chris Conklin Michelle Duval Ben Hartig Charlie Phillips Staff contact: Kim Iverson

CITIZEN SCIENCE

Chris Conklin, Chair
Ben Hartig, Vice-Chair
Zack Bowen
Chester Brewer
Mark Brown
Michelle Duval
Tim Griner
Charlie Phillips
Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative
Staff contact:
Amber Von Harten/John Carmichael

DATA COLLECTION

Mel Bell, Chair
Doug Haymans, Vice-Chair
Anna Beckwith
Zack Bowen
Mark Brown
Tim Griner
Wilson Laney
Ben Hartig
Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative
Staff contact: John Carmichael

DOLPHIN WAHOO

Anna Beckwith, Chair Doug Haymans, Vice-Chair Zack Bowen

Zack Bowen
Chester Brewer
Mark Brown
Chris Conklin
Roy Crabtree
Tim Griner
Jessica McCawley
Mid-Atlantic Liaison, Tony DiLernia/Dewey
Hemilright
New England Liaison, Rick Bellavance
Staff contact: John Hadley

EXECUTIVE/FINANCE

Michelle Duval, Chair Charlie Phillips, Vice Chair Chris Conklin Ben Hartig Doug Haymans Jessica McCawley Staff contact: Gregg Waugh

GOLDEN CRAB

Ben Hartig, Chair Charlie Phillips, Vice-Chair Chris Conklin Tim Griner Jessica McCawley Staff contact: Brian Cheuvront

HABITAT PROTECTION AND ECOSYSTEM-BASED MANAGEMENT

Doug Haymans, Co-Chair
Wilson Laney, Co-Chair
Mel Bell
Chester Brewer
Tim Griner
Jessica McCawley
LT Tara Pray
Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative
Staff contact: Roger Pugliese- FEP
Chip Collier – Coral/CEBA

HIGHLY MIGRATORY SPECIES

Anna Beckwith, Chair
Mark Brown, Vice-Chair
Ben Hartig
Charlie Phillips
Staff contact: John Hadley

(Continued)

2017 COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP

COUNCIL CHAIR

Dr. Michelle Duval
NC Division of Marine Fisheries
3441 Arendell Street
(PO Box 769)
Morehead City, NC 28557
252/808-8011 (ph);
252/726-0254 (f)
michelle.duval@ncdenr.gov

VICE-CHAIR

Charlie Phillips
Phillips Seafood/Sapelo Sea Farms
1418 Sapelo Avenue, N.E.
Townsend, GA 31331
912/832-4423 (ph); 912/832-6228 (f)
Ga capt@yahoo.com

Robert E. Beal
Executive Director
Atlantic States Marine Fisheries
Commission
1050 N. Highland St., Suite 200 A-N
Arlington, VA 20001
703/842-0740 (ph); 703/842-0741 (f)
rbeal@asmfc.org

Anna Beckwith
1907 Paulette Road
Morehead City, NC 28557
252/671-3474 (ph)
AnnaBarriosBeckwith@gmail.com

Mel Bell
S.C. Dept. of Natural Resources
Marine Resources Division
P.O. Box 12559
(217 Ft. Johnson Road)
Charleston, SC 29422-2559
843/953-9007 (ph)
843/953-9159 (fax)
bellm@dnr.sc.gov

Zack Bowen
P.O. Box 30825
Savannah, GA 31410
912/398-3733 (ph)
zackbowensafmc@gmail.com

W. Chester Brewer 250 Australian Ave. South Suite 1400 West Palm Beach, FL 33408 561/655-4777 (ph) wcbsafmc@gmail.com

Mark Brown 3642 Pandora Drive Mt. Pleasant, SC 29466 843/881-9735 (ph); 843/881-4446 (f) capt.markbrown101@gmail.com

Chris Conklin P.O. Box 972 Murrells Inlet, SC 29576 843/543-3833 conklinsafmc@gmail.com

Ør. Roy Crabtree
Regional Administrator
NOAA Fisheries, Southeast Region
263 13th Avenue South
St. Petersburg, FL 33701
727/824-5301 (ph); 727/824-5320 (f)
roy.crabtree@noaa.gov

Tim Griner
4446 Woodlark Lane
Charlotte, NC 28211
980/722-0918 (ph)
timgrinersafmc@gmail.com

Ben Hartig 9277 Sharon Street Hobe Sound, FL 33455 772/546-1541 (ph) mackattackben@att.net

(Continued)

2017 COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP (continued)

7

Voug Haymans
Coastal Resources Division
GA Dept. of Natural Resources
One Conservation Way, Suite 300
Brunswick, GA 31520-8687
912/264-7218 (ph); 912/262-2318 (f)
haymanssafmc@gmail.com

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
South Atlantic Fisheries Coordinator
P.O. Box 33683
Raleigh, NC 27695-7617
(110 Brooks Ave
237 David Clark Laboratories,
NCSU Campus
Raleigh, NC 27695-7617)
919/515-5019 (ph)
919/515-4415 (f)
Wilson Laney@fws.gov

Yessica McCawley
Florida Fish and Wildlife
Conservation Commission
2590 Executive Center Circle E.,
Suite 201
Tallahassee, FL 32301
850/487-0554 (ph); 850/487-4847(f)
jessica.mccawley@myfwc.com

LT Tara Pray U.S. Coast Guard 909 SE 1st Ave. Miami, FL 33131 305/415-6765 (ph) tara.c.pray@uscg.mil

Deirdre Warner-Kramer
Office of Marine Conservation
OES/OMC
2201 C Street, N.W.
Department of State, Room 5806
Washington, DC 20520
202/647-3228 (ph); 202/736-7350 (f)
Warner-KramerDM@state.gov

JOS Shiver

WALTER HOPPE

Dr. Jack McGovern

Dr. Bonnie Ponvith

Monicu Smit-Brunellu

Erika Burgess

Date Diaz

Dewey Hemilright

Rick Devictor

Dr. Marcel Reichart

COUNCIL STAFF

Executive Director
Gregg T. Waugh

gregg.waugh@safmc.net

Deputy Director - Science & Statistics

Yohn Carmichael john.carmichael@safmc.net

Deputy Director - Management

Dr. Brian Cheuvront

brian.cheuvront@safmc.net

Fishery Scientist

Myra Brouwer myra.brouwer@safmc.net

Admin. Secretary /Travel Coordinator

Cindy Chaya cindy.chaya@safmc.net

Purchasing & Grants

Kimberly Cole kimberly.cole@safmc.net

Fishery Scientist

Dr. Chip Collier<u>chip.collier@safmc.net</u>

Administrative Officer

Mike Collins mike.collins@safmc.net

Fishery Biologist

Or. Mike Errigo mike.errigo@safmc.net

Fishery Economist

John Hadley

John.hadley@safmc.net

Public Information Officer

Kim Iverson kim.iverson@safmc.net Fisheries Social Scientist

√Dr. Kari MacLauchlin kari.maclauchlin@safmc.net

Senior Fishery Biologist

Roger Pugliese roger.pugliese@safmc.net

Outreach Specialist

Cameron Rhodes
Cameron.rhodes@safmc.net

Financial Secretary

Suzanna Thomas suzanna.thomas@safmc.net

Eishery Citizen Science Program Manager

Amber Von Harten amber.vonharten@safmc.net

SEDAR Coordinators

Dr. Julie Neer - <u>julie.neer@safmc.net</u> Julia Byrd - <u>julia.byrd@safmc.net</u>

JUNE 2017 COUNCIL MTG DAY 1 6/12/17

Last Name	First Name	Email Address
Abeels	Holly	habeels@ufl.edu
Atran	Steven	steven.atran@gulfcouncil.org
Bianchi	Alan	Alan.Bianchi@ncdenr.gov
Bowen	Zack	fishzack@comcast.net
Brennnan	Ken	Kenneth.Brennan@noaa.gov
Brown	Mark	capt.markbrown@comcast.net
Buckson	Bruce	bruce@bbuckson.net
Burgess	Erika	erika.burgess@myfwc.com
Byrd	Julia	julia.byrd@safmc.net
Cheshire	Rob	rob.cheshire@noaa.gov
Christoferson	Jill	jill.christoferson@myfwc.com
Clarke	Lora	lclarke@pewtrusts.org
Cole	Kimberly	kimberly.cole@safmc.net
Conklin	Chris	conklinsafmc@gmail.com
Cunningham	Leda	ledacunningham@gmail.com
DeVictor	Rick	rick.devictor@noaa.gov
Diaz	Dale	Saltwaterlife@live.com
Dutka-Gianelli	Jynessa	jdgianelli@ufl.edu
Erwin	Gwen	gwen.erwin@myfwc.com
Exley	Gary	river92@bellsouth.net
Foss	Kristin	kristin.foss@myfwc.com
Geer	P	pat.geer@dnr.ga.gov
Gerhart	Susan	susan.gerhart@noaa.gov
Godwin	Joelle	joelle.godwin@noaa.gov
Guyas	Martha	martha.guyas@myfwc.com
Helies	Frank	frank.helies@noaa.gov
Hudson	Rusty	DSF2009@aol.com
Iverson	Kim	kim.iverson@safmc.net
Johnson	Denise	denise.johnson@noaa.gov
Kilgour	Morgan	morgan.kilgour@gulfcouncil.org
Knowlton	Kathy	kathy.knowlton@dnr.ga.gov
Laks	Ira	captainira@att.net
Larkin	Michael	Michael.Larkin@noaa.gov
Lee	Jennifer	Jennifer.Lee@noaa.gov
Levy	Mara	mara.levy@noaa.gov
MacLauchlin	Kari	kari.maclauchlin@safmc.net
Margiotta	Andrea	amargiotta@scaquarium.org
McHan	Chris	cmchan@gmri.org
Mehta	Nikhil	nikhil.mehta@noaa.gov
Neer	Julie	julie.neer@safmc.net
O'Donnell	Kelli	kelli.odonnell@noaa.gov

JUNE COUNCIL MTG DAY 1 2017

Potts	Jennifer	jennifer.potts@noaa.gov
Pulver	Jeff	Jeff.Pulver@noaa.gov
Raine	Karen	karen.raine@noaa.gov
Ralston	Kellie	kralston@asafishing.org
Recicar	Todd	todd.recicar@noaa.gov
Sauls	Beverly	Beverly.Sauls@myfwc.com
Sedberry	George	george.sedberry@noaa.gov
Shortland	Becky	becky.shortland@noaa.gov
Siegfried	Katie	kate.siegfried@noaa.gov
Smart	Tracey	smartt@dnr.sc.gov
Stillman	Karolyn	Karolyn.stillman@noaa.gov
Takade-Heumacher	Helen	htakade@edf.org
Tong	Amanda	Amanda.Tong@ncdenr.gov
Uibel	Nicole1	nicole.uibel@noaa.gov
Williams	Erik	erik.williams@noaa.gov
ayala	oscar	oscar.ayala@myFWC.com
bergmann	charles	charles.bergmann@noaa.gov
brewer	chester	wcbsafmc@gmail.com
brouwer	myra	myra.brouwer@safmc.net
collins	m	mec181@yahoo.com
cox	Jack	dayboat1965@gmail.com
pugliese	roger	roger.pugliese@safmc.net
sandorf	scott	scott.sandorf@noaa.gov
sminkey	tom	tom.sminkey@noaa.gov
vara	mary	mary.vara@noaa.gov

Leda	Cunningham	Contact Information al				Non-Gover		
Bryan	Huskey	New Contact	keepemwetfishing@outlook.com				Other	Speaker for
Tom	Twyford	New Contact	stwyford@bellsouth.net	Private Recre		Non-Gover		
Chuck	Adams	New Contact	cmadams@ufl.edu				Other	Florida Sea
Kai	Lorenzen	New Contact	klorenzen@ufl.edu				Other	University
Steve	Theberge	New Contact	fishhead51@gmail.com	Private Recre		Non-Gover		
Andy	Loftus	New Contact	aloftus@andrewloftus.com			Non-Gover Other	Other	
Rusty	Hudson	Contact Information al			Charter/Headboat/Fo			
Dean	Foster	Contact Information al				Non-Gover		
Bill	Wickers, Jr.	Contact Information al			Charter/Headboat/Fo			
Lora	Clarke	Contact Information al				Non-Gover		
Kellie	Rallston	Contact Information al				Non-Gover		
Kellie	Ralston	Contact Information al				Non-Gover		